
BASIN MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Agenda Item 5a: Minutes of the Meeting of March 21st, 2018

Agenda Item Discussion or Action

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF 

ALLIGANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

Director Ochylski serving as chair called the meeting to order at 1:35 pm and Director 

Garfinkel led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Mr. Miller, acting Clerk, called roll to begin the meeting.  Director Zimmer, Director 

Garfinkel, Director Gibson, and Chairperson Ochylski were all present.

4. Board Member 

Comments

Director Ochylski:  I have to leave at 3:00 pm today for pending flood issues if we are not 

completed by then our vice chair will take over.

Director Garfinkel: The RAC is sponsoring a meeting with the Board of Supervisors 

chambers on April 4 to explain the legal ramifications of everything that is going on with 

SGMA and land use. There will be some lawyers present to answer questions at that time. 

5a. Minutes of the Meeting 

of March 21st, 2018

5b. Approval of Budget 

update and Invoice Register 

through December 2017

No Board or Public comment.

Director Garfinkel: Motion to accept the consent agenda. 

Director Gibson: Second the Motion. 

Ayes: Director Zimmer, Director Garfinkel, Director Gibson, Chairperson Ochylski

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

6. Executive Director’s 

Report

Executive Director, Rob Miller, provided a verbal overview of the written content of the 

Executive Director’s report. 

Questions from the Board

Director Garfinkel: We spoke at the last meeting about that we’re going to do a metric for 

the upper aquifer, has that been established?

Mr. Miller: You will see more about that in the draft annual report that Cleath Harris is 

currently authoring. 

Director Zimmer: I had question regarding the funding and financing of programs. It talks 

about the staff engaging in the IRWM process of the creek discharge, can you expand on 

that?

Mr.  Miller: There hasn’t been any new development on that, but we did submit a 

summary of the project about a year ago and it got included in the list of IRWM projects. 

It was to do the up-front work that would be necessary to accomplish a creek discharge. 

Ultimately that might be an investment that would have to be considered here at the 

community level if we’re not successful in securing funds from the IRWM. The tracer and 

travel time studies was a 6 figure number, and other local communities are making similar 

investments in projects like these. That’s a decision that will be in front of us at some 



point.  

Public Comment 

No public comment.

Response from the BMC

No Response

7a. Update on Status of 

Basin Plan Infrastructure 

Projects

Mr. Miller: Gave a detailed overview on the status of the Basin Plan Infrastructure 

Projects and showed the following exhibit to show work area options for a Lupine Street 

Monitoring Well.

Director Ochylski: Just for clarification, the Cleath Harris contract was contingent on the 

agency’s approving the budget, has everyone approved that budget?

Mr. Miller: Yes, the County is working on an internal process, but yes Cleath has already 

begun. 

Public Comment 

 

Mr. Cesena: Do you know anywhere in the State, not just locally, where metering has 

been attempted? 

Ms. Stuckey: There are areas in the State that do meter. They are within management 

districts that do it pursuant to their principal acts. The County is in a position to monitor 

pursuant to its police power. I think some Counties have done so but I’m not sure which 

ones. I think most jurisdictions are planning to start metering pursuant to the authorities 

under SGMA and their groundwater sustainability plans. 

Director Zimmer: The blending project for Skyline Well, I think we could put that in the 

completed status. Maybe change the name of the project to the Blending Project and 



Rosina Nitrate Removal or something of that nature. 

Mr. Miller: We will list that project as complete. 

Director Gibson: I see a potential benefit of monitoring individual meters. I would also like 

to put forth the concept of how it may be beneficial to first offer meters for people to use 

voluntarily as well as having people read the meters voluntarily.  Imposing meters on 

people would come to the County, and that is a political issue that will need a very good 

basis to engage. In the Director’s Report, Rob, you mentioned that new wells in the upper 

and lower aquifer viewed as aquifer management not eligible for grants under Prop 1. I’ve 

been talking a lot about denitrifying upper aquifer for drinking water. Can we not go back 

to the idea that anything we pull out of the upper aquifer and treat is cleaning up that 

aquifer?

Mr. Miller: That is a good observation; after multiple conversations as to why our 

programs prevent or reverse sea water intrusion they couldn’t get over the fact that we 

are pulling it out of the ground and not treating it.  Treatment efforts are more grant 

eligible.  The challenge there is that operation and maintenance costs are not, which are 

about $1,000 an acre ft. 

Director Gibson: We have talked about extending upper aquifer denitrification. I’d be 

interested in bringing it back as a discussion item, with possibility of grant funding. It’s 

such a direct effect on the aquifer by displacing pumping and a direct way to fight sea 

water intrusion. 



7b.  Support for Potential 

Basin Boundary Modification 

Request for Los Osos 

Groundwater Basin 

Ms. Martin: Gave a detailed presentation on the Potential Basin Boundary Modification 

Request for Los Osos Groundwater Basin.  

Director Ochylski: For the March 26th meeting could you give a time and place?

Ms. Martin: Yes, it’s at 6:00 PM at the Cal Fire Training Center. 

Director Garfinkel: I asked at a previous meeting for a better definition of the boundary 

between the second area and our basin management area where the line cuts across. Is 

that in Montana de Oro or is it below that? The dotted line that runs east and west?

Ms. Martin: This is all State Park area through here. There is a map on our SGMA website 

that you can zoom and see all the roads in that area, as well as the adjudication and fringe 

areas. 

 

Director Garfinkel: Would the BMC have to go back to court to get revisions to our court 

order?

Ms. Martin: No, we had a discussion with the State about that, this should be in the 

confines of your ISJ. 

Director Gibson: If our adjudicated area is bigger than the Basin, there is no problem since 

we are managing more than the Basin. The only thing the State cares about it that we are 

managing the Basin, or that, that part of the Basin is adjudicated. 

Director Garfinkel: Do court documents have to be modified?

Director Gibson: No, at this point it doesn’t seem like that. Cathy, you’ve received positive 

feedback from DWR about this correct?

Ms. Martin: Yes, we’ve been talking for a year now.  We’ve had a couple meetings with 

them and they like our approach. They prefer the jurisdictional approach for this Basin. 

Director Gibson: Would you be asking the Basin Management Committee as an entity to 

write a letter to support, or individual purveyors, or both?

Ms. Martin: Yes, we have an action item for the BMC to have the Executive Director 

provide a letter of support. Also, for the jurisdictional approach, to get a new sub basin, 

the law requires us to have ¾ support. That would mean letters of support or a resolution 

from all affected agencies or water purveyors within the system. We would like to have 

that before mid-May. 

Director Zimmer: Did you mention that there is a characterization study?

Ms. Martin: Yes, we received some comments from the State when we met with them 

and incorporated the comments. Cleath Harris is finalizing that study for us. It will be a 

public draft, so we hope to receive any additional comments before April 10th. 

Director Zimmer: How will the Eastern Valley Sub Basin comply with the BMC? Will that 

be its own entity?

Ms. Martin: The Los Osos Area Sub Basin and Eastern Valley Sub Basin are two separate 

identities for management.



Director Gibson: Yes, the Eastern Valley Sub Basin would be for the County to deal with 

and hopefully there wouldn’t be much that we’d have to do. 

Public Comment 

Mr. Edwards: How is this going to help manage our Basin? I support the letter though and 

see no problem with that. Ms. Martin regarding your timeline, I know the BMC was 

working with and paying Cleath Harris in the Basin Management Boundary Determination 

early on, but my question is, when did we stop paying and the County start?

BMC Comments

Mr. Miller: So, in the first year of this committee we had a budget and line item for Basin 

Boundary Study and Modification and this committee paid $20,000 - $25,000 for that 

study. That was the only expenditure that this committee made. After that and the 

request was turned down on a scientific basis. After that denial is when the County took 

the lead on it. The advantage of this process is clarity of management with the State. As 

we pursue further actions that might fall under DWR’s jurisdiction for grants or other 

reasons, we would now have clear management boundaries. 

Director Gibson: The functional advantage of that is we have a Basin Management Plan 

that applies to the adjudicated area. If we can get the designation of the Eastern Valley as 

a sub basin, we have confirmed that there is no interaction between those two basins to 

take into consideration. So, it validates our Basin Management and leaves the Eastern 

Valley to be managed on its own merits. 

Ms. Martin: To Rob’s point, the Flood Control District did hire Cleath Harris for this to help 

SGMA efforts, because we need a Groundwater Sustainability Plan by 2020. So, this is a 

preliminary report to help fill that in as well. 

Mr. Miller: This is an action item, so we are hoping to take Staff’s action. 

Director Ochylski: So, are we in support of sending a letter of support?

Director Zimmer: I motion that we authorize staff to send in a letter of support.

Director Garfinkel: I second that. 

Ayes: Unanimous.

Nays: None

Abstain: None.

Absent: None

7c.   Water Conservation 

Program Update

Mr. Miller:  Gave a detailed overview of the Water Conservation Program Update.

Director Zimmer: Are the costs for community meeting, such as facilities, going through 

the BMC? 

Mr. Miller: Yes, the facility cost is minimal, about $40-$50 an hour.

Director Zimmer: Since there are so many rebates out there with boundaries and zones, 

some of these rebates may or may not apply, we are trying to design a trifold manual with 



all this information. We are currently working on that. 

Public Comment 

Mr. Edwards: Between the individual purveyor conservation programs, Title 19, the 

building construction code, and the rebate program, all these programs are confusing for 

people.  Once we’re able to simplify those for people it will have a tremendous effect. I 

think we should organize singular program to change wasteful plumbing fixtures for 

instant water conservation. I also think it would be instructive to have updates on our 

bimonthly meetings about how much has been applied for and conserved under Title 19 

and the rebate programs.

BMC Comments

Director Garfinkel: I think we should follow through with Mr. Edwards suggestion and 

track that conservation. 

Mr. Miller: I think it’s a good idea as well. 

7d. Groundwater Basin 

Modeling for Adaptive 

Management

Mr. Miller:  Gave a detailed overview of Groundwater Basin Modeling for Adaptive 

Management Report.

Director Zimmer: So, we have $10,000 for Cleath to do this work, if we decide not to do 

the transient model, what are the next steps?

Mr. Miller: Everything in Cleath’s scope of work is included in the $10,000. It’s a complete 

package of those items included in the attached proposal. The reason I brought forward 

the transient model is when we talk about adaptive management, people want to talk 

about what happens if we have a drought, and I want to be transparent that’s not what 

we’re doing. We are looking at infrastructure over a steady state with sustained 

production at current levels. 

Director Garfinkel: To be more specific, the SEAWAT that we’re talking about, is that one 

we’d have to purchase?

Mr. Miller: No, we already use SEAWAT as part of the current groundwater model. It has 

more capabilities than what we are currently using. 

Director Gibson: I appreciate you looking into it, but the cost benefit isn’t quite there yet. 

Another part of it is, do we have enough observations on this Basin to really make a 

transient model work right now, maybe in time. 

Public Comment 

Mr. Edwards: I don’t support the idea at this time. Perhaps when we get a few years down 

the road, when we have a new Program C well in the ground, or Program B nitrate 

removal up and running. It would be premature, and we need to get more facilities on the 

ground before we can begin to look at this. 

BMC Comments



Director Gibson:  Motion to Approve the proposed scope and fee for hydrogeologic 

services in an amount not to exceed $10,000, as approved in the calendar year 2018 

budget.

Director Garfinkel: I second that. 

Ayes: Unanimous.

Nays: None

Abstain: None.

Absent: None

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

ON ITEMS NOT 

APPEARING ON THE 

AGENDA

 Mr. Edwards: I feel there are several things that should be on upcoming agendas. We 

didn’t get a creek discharge update today, but I feel that project priority is slipping, and I 

think we need to move forward on that. We didn’t have the delivery of treated water to 

dryland farmers, I would like to see it back on the agenda. Is anyone going to talk about 

the $10 Million that is getting taken out of our community because the County settled the 

ARB Lawsuit; that was money for our water projects. I would encourage committee 

members to read the Resource Management System for the County, I feel like there are a 

lot of inaccuracies in it.  

Mr. Cesena: I like the idea of revisiting the recycled water contracts, I just don’t think that 

should happen. I’d also like a bigger picture look at what is going on at planning and 

development at the County in terms of building permits that are being issued. 

9. ADJOURNMENT Meeting was adjourned at 2:45 pm.

The next meeting will be on May 16th at the South Bay Community Center in Los Osos at 

1:30 pm.



TO: Los Osos Basin Management Committee 

FROM: Rob Miller, Interim Executive Director 

DATE: May 16, 2018

SUBJECT: Item 5b – Approval of Budget Update and Invoice Register through 

May 16, 2018, 2018

Recommendations

Staff recommends that the Committee review and approve the report.

Discussion

Staff has prepared a summary of costs incurred as compared to the adopted budget through

May 16, 2018 (see Attachment 1).  A running invoice register is also provided as Attachment 2. 
Staff recommends that the Committee approve the current invoices, outlined in Attachment 3. 
Payment of invoices will continue to be processed through Brownstein Hyatt as noted in previous 
meetings.



Attachment 1: Cost Summary (Year to Date) for Calendar Year 2018 

Item Description Budget Amount Costs Incurred Percent Incurred

Remaining 

Budget

1

Monthly meeting administration, including 

preparation, staff notes, and attendance $50,000 $13,256.63 26.5% $36,743

2

Meeting expenses - facility rent (if SBCC needed for 

larger venue) $1,000 $240.00 24.0% $760

3 Meeting expenses - audio and video services $6,000 $0.00 0.0% $6,000

4 Adaptive Management - Groundwater Modeling $10,000 $0.00 0.0% $10,000

5 Semi annual seawater intrusion monitoring $26,400 $1,320.00 5.0% $25,080

6 Annual Report - not including Year 1 start up costs $29,600 $21,355.00 72.1% $8,245

7 Grant writing (outside consultant) $5,000 $0.00 0.0% $5,000

8 Creek Recharge and Replenishment Studies $15,000 $0.00 0.0% $15,000

9 Cuesta by the Sea Monitoring well $115,000 $840.00 0.7% $114,160

10

Conservation programs (not including member 

programs) $10,000 $0.00 0.0% $10,000

 Subtotal $268,000 $0.00  $230,988

 10% Contingency $26,800    

 Total $294,800 $37,011.63 12.6% $257,788

      

 LOCSD (38%) $112,024    

 GSWC (38%) $112,024    

 County of SLO (20%) $58,960    

 S&T Mutual (4%) $11,792    

Notes      

   

      



Attachment 2: Invoice Register for Los Osos BMC for Calendar Year 2018 (through May 16, 2018)

Vendor Invoice No. Amount Month of Service Description Budget Item
Previously 

Approved

CHG 20180203 $11,095.00 Feb-18 Annual Report 6 Yes

Wallace Group 0384-0011-01 $5,325.00 Jan-18 Administration 1 Yes

CHG 20180303 $10,260.00 Mar-18 Annual Report 6  

CHG 20180304 $1,320.00 Mar-18 Semi-annual groundwater monitoring 5  

CHG 20180305 $840.00 Mar-18 Cuesta-By-The-Sea Monitoring Well 9  

Wallace Group 45731 $3,475.47 Feb-18 Administration 1  

Wallace Group 45911 $4,456.16 Mar-18 Administration 1  

SBCC 99 $120.00 Jul-17 Meeting Expenses-Facility Rent 2  

SBCC 113 $120.00 Mar-18 Meeting Expenses-Facility Rent 2  

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

Total  $37,011.63     

 Not yet approved



ATTACHMENT 3

Current Invoices Subject to Approval for Payment (Warrant List as of May 16, 2018):

Vendor Invoice # Date of Services Amount of Invoice

CHG 20180303 Mar-18 $10,260.00

CHG 20180304 Mar-18 $1,320.00

CHG 20180305 Mar-18 $840.00

Wallace Group 45731 Feb-18 $3,475.47

Wallace Group 45911 Mar-18 $4,456.16

SBCC 99 Jul-17 $120.00

SBCC 113 Mar-18 $120.00



Page 1 of 4

TO: Los Osos Basin Management Committee

FROM: Rob Miller, Interim Executive Director

DATE: May 16, 2018

SUBJECT: Item 6 – Executive Director’s Report

Recommendations

Staff recommends that the Committee receive and file the report, and provide staff with any 

direction for future discussions.

Discussion

This report was prepared to summarize administrative matters not covered in other agenda 

items and also to provide a general update on staff activities.  

Basin Infrastructure Program Update

Staff elected to defer this regular agenda item to the June meeting to allow for more preparation 

on the subject of second Program C expansion well.  A number of letters have been received 

from the community on the topic, and a complete discussion will take place in June.  

Funding and Financing Programs to Support Basin Plan Implementation 

As indicated in the January 2018 meeting the State Board confirmed that sea water intrusion 

mitigation projects under Program C are eligible for low interest loans but are not currently 

eligible for grants under Proposition 1.  New wells in the upper and lower aquifer are viewed as 

aquifer management, not aquifer clean-up as defined by the State, therefore we will need to 

look for future funding rounds and other opportunities. Staff has engaged in the IRWM process 

with SLO County for the Los Osos Creek Replenishment and Recharge Project (IRWM Project 

ID 2017 NT-07).   

During the March BMC meeting, the committee requested additional information regarding the 

grant eligibility of Program B project.  Staff is currently working on that issue and will bring it 

back in a subsequent meeting.  In addition, staff continues to look for strategic partners to team 

on the baseline studies required to accomplish a creek discharge project.  Key initial tasks 

include water quality monitoring within the stream, installation of downgradient monitoring wells, 

and additional modeling and travel time testing. 

Status of Zone of Benefit Analysis  

Similar to previous updates, no special tax measure is being pursued by staff to fund BMC 

administrative or capital costs.  This item has been removed from the BMC budget for 2018.  At 

the March meeting, the BMC approved a formal review of assets in place and pending, under 

the principles of adaptive management.  The Zone of Benefit approach can be initiated at any 

time as directed by the BMC.  



Page 2 of 4

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and Basin Boundary Modification Request 
(BBMR) Updates  
SGMA Update: As indicated in the July 2017 update, the Plan Area defined in the Los Osos 
Basin Plan and approved by the Court is largely exempt from the requirements of SGMA. 
However, SGMA compliance is currently required in the areas outside of the adjudicated 
management area, but within the State’s designated basin boundary (i.e., “fringe areas”, see 
attached Figure 1). 

On April 4, 2017, the County of San Luis Obispo (County) Board of Supervisors decided to 
become the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the Los Osos Basin “fringe areas”. 
The GSA’s first key steps is understanding the “fringe areas”. The County and its consultant, 
Cleath-Harris Geologists, Inc., are in the process of finalizing a basin characterization study 
(Study), in order to characterize and develop a hydrogeologic conceptual model of the “fringe 
areas”.  The Study is available on line at: 
<https://www.slocountywater.org/site/Water%20Resources/SGMA/lososos/>.

BBMR Update: The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) is responsible for 
defining basin boundaries, but recognizes that refined scientific data or jurisdictional information 
may warrant boundary modifications. As such, DWR will periodically open basin boundary 
modification request periods for local agencies to submit requests and supporting scientific or 
jurisdictional information. DWR opened a 6-month request window on January 1, 2018. Local 
agencies may submit requests by June 30, 2018 for DWR consideration.  More information on 
DWR’s process can be found at: < http://water.ca.gov/groundwater/sgm/basin_boundaries.cfm 
>.
On March 20, 2018, County staff submitted the notice of intent to explore a boundary 
modification for the Los Osos Basin to DWR. Basin outreach for the BBMR process included 
presenting 1) the recommended Los Osos Basin boundary modifications (see Figure 2), 2) 
review supporting scientific information from the Study, and 3) BBMR regulation procedures for 
providing comments to the County and DWR.  Public meetings included the March 21, 2018 Los 
Osos BMC meeting and an evening meeting hosted by the County on March 26, 2018.  The 
BMC authorized the release of a letter of support, which was issued on May 8, 2018 (see 
attached copy).

On June 5, 2018, County Staff will present the recommended Los Osos Basin boundary 
modifications to the County Board of Supervisors, and the Board will consider submitting a 
BBMR to the DWR. Please consider attending and providing comments during the meeting, 
held at the County Government Center, 1055 Monterey Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93408. 
Please see the agenda regarding time of day for the item, available on May 29th and located at: 
<https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Board-of-Supervisors/Board-Meetings,-Agendas-
and-Minutes.aspx>.

Benefits from the proposed basin boundary modification includes the following: 

 The proposed modifications will better align the adjudicated area boundary with the 
Bulletin 118 Los Osos Basin boundary, founded on the best available scientific 
information.  

 The proposed basin boundary modifications will clarify that the Basin Management 
Committee’s management efforts are focused on the Adjudicated area and the County 
Los Osos Basin GSA’s SGMA management efforts are focused in a separate subbasin. 

https://www.slocountywater.org/site/Water%20Resources/SGMA/lososos/
http://water.ca.gov/groundwater/sgm/basin_boundaries.cfm
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Board-of-Supervisors/Board-Meetings,-Agendas-and-Minutes.aspx
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Board-of-Supervisors/Board-Meetings,-Agendas-and-Minutes.aspx


Page 3 of 4

Figure 1. Current Los Osos Valley Groundwater Basin

Figure 2. Proposed Los Osos Basin Boundary Modification 



Page 4 of 4

Los Osos Wastewater Project Flow and Connection Update

 Of the 177 unconnected properties, 72 are waiting for the County/USDA/LOCSD low-

income grant program to pay for their connection leaving 105 properties that may require 

enforcement.  Of the 105 properties, 32 are in the process of connecting (ie: obtained a 

building permit), and 13 have responded to the County’s survey giving reasons why they 

are not connected yet. Subtracting those categories leaves 60 properties (1.3% of 4583 

total parcels) that are the focus of the Code enforcement process. 

 The County is in the process of securing a Board date & preparing a staff report to 

amend the County Code. The Board date is scheduled for August 7, 2018. 

 Influent flows into the treatment facility are peaking at 0.50 mgd. No recycled water 

deliveries have been made to irrigation users yet. Effluent is being disposed at both 

Broderson and Bayridge leachfields.  As of 3/31/2018, effluent disposal totaled 133.7 AF 

to Broderson and 6.5 AF to Bayridge leachfields.   The development of the expected 

groundwater mount downgradient of Broderson continues as shown in the attached 

recent hydrograph of monitoring well FW-6.  Recycled water agreements are being 

finalized with LOCSD and GSWC for the delivery of recycled water to the schools and 

urban areas, and the schools will be retrofitted to receive recycled water during the 2018 

summer break. 

Option to Bring Morro Bay Wastewater to Los Osos WWRF

Similar to staff’s last update, it was determined that both summer and winter peak day flows at 

the City of Morro Bay are expected to exceed the available capacity in the Los Osos 

Wastewater Reclamation Facility, and therefore an expansion would be required to 

accommodate the higher flows.  A number of peak day flows of over 3 mgd have been observed 

at the existing Morro Bay facility.  Additional information on the Morro Bay project can be found 

here: http://morrobaywrf.com/.  

http://morrobaywrf.com/




153

155

157

159

161

163

16528

30

32

34

36

38

40

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at
er
 (f
ee
t)

le
va
tio

n 
in
 F
ee
t a

bo
ve

 s
ea

 le
ve
l

Hydrograph
FW‐6  (30S/10E‐24A) 

Reference Point Elevation :  193.04

167

169

171

17320

22

24

26

D

G
ro
un

dw
at
er
 E

Date 



Page 1 of 1

TO: Los Osos Basin Management Committee

FROM: Rob Miller, Interim Executive Director

DATE: May 16, 2018

SUBJECT: Item 7a – Presentation of Draft 2017 Annual Report

Recommendations

Recommendations: 

1. Receive a presentation from BMC staff regarding the draft 2017 Annual Report; and 

2. Confirm June date for BMC meeting to approve final 2017 Annual Report for submission to 

the Court.  

Discussion

Section 5.8.3 of the Final Judgment requires that the preparation of an Annual Report by June 

30 of each year. The BMC retained Cleath Harris Geologists (CHG) to prepare the second 

Annual Report for calendar year 2017.  The draft work product prepared by CHG is attached, 

and a staff summary will be provided at the meeting.  Please note that the development of an 

upper aquifer metric is not currently addressed in the draft.  This issue will be discussed in 

concept during the May BMC meeting, but will be addressed by staff in writing prior to the 

consideration of the final 2017 Annual Report.  A brief special meeting may be necessary in late 

June to adopt the report.  

Financial Considerations

Budget items 5 and 6 in the adopted calendar year 2018 to $56,000 for monitoring and 

preparation of the annual report.  At this time, no budget adjustments are recommended.  



 
 
 
 

 
 

 

    DRAFT 
 

LOS OSOS BASIN PLAN 
GROUNDWATER MONITORING PROGRAM 

 2017 ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 Prepared for the 
 

 BASIN MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
  
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 MAY 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 CLEATH-HARRIS GEOLOGISTS 
 71 Zaca Lane, Suite 140 
 San Luis Obispo, California 93401

 



	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report‐DRAFT	 May	2018	i	

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
SECTION PAGE 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................. 1 

1.  INTRODUCTION ................................................ 6 

2.  BACKGROUND ................................................ 7 

2.1  Groundwater Monitoring History ................................... 7 

2.2  Groundwater Monitoring Program Design ............................. 7 

2.2.1  Water Level Monitoring ...................................... 9 

2.2.2  Groundwater Quality Monitoring ............................... 13 

2.2.3  Monitoring Frequency ...................................... 17 

2.2.4  SGMA Activities .......................................... 18 

3.  CONDUCT OF WORK ........................................... 18 

3.1  Services Provided ............................................ 18 

3.2  Field Methods ............................................... 18 

3.2.1  Elevation Datum .......................................... 19 

3.2.2  Water Level Monitoring Procedures ............................. 19 

3.2.3  Groundwater Sampling Procedures .............................. 19 

3.3  Monitoring Staff Affiliations ..................................... 20 

4.  MONITORING RESULTS ......................................... 20 

4.1  Water Level Monitoring Results ................................... 20 

4.2  Water Quality Results .......................................... 28 

4.2.3  Nitrate and Chloride Results .................................. 28 

4.2.4  CEC Results ............................................. 28 

4.3  Geophysics ................................................. 33 

5.  GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION ................................... 34 

6.  PRECIPITATION AND STREAMFLOW ............................... 37 

7.  DATA INTERPRETATION ........................................ 40 

7.1  Water Level Contour Maps ...................................... 40 

7.2  Water Level Hydrographs ....................................... 47 

7.3  Seawater Intrusion ............................................ 52 

7.4  Groundwater in Storage ........................................ 54 

7.5  Basin Metrics ............................................... 58 

7.5.1  Basin Yield Metric ......................................... 58 



	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report‐DRAFT	 May	2018	ii	

7.5.2  Basin Development Metric ................................... 59 

7.5.3  Water Level, Chloride, and Nitrate Metrics ......................... 59 

8.  BASIN STATUS ............................................... 68 

9.  RECOMMENDATIONS .......................................... 69 

10.  ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM AND STATUS OF LOBP PROGRAM 
IMPLEMENTATION ................................................ 69 

10.1  Basin Metrics .............................................. 70 

10.2  Adaptations to LOBP Programs .................................. 70 

10.3  LOBP Programs ............................................ 72 

10.3.1  Groundwater Monitoring Program .............................. 72 

10.3.2  Urban Water Use Efficiency Program ............................ 73 

10.3.3  Urban Water Reinvestment Program ............................. 79 

10.3.4  Basin Infrastructure Programs ................................. 80 

10.3.5  Wellhead Protection Program .................................. 80 

11.  REFERENCES ............................................... 83 

 
  



	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report‐DRAFT	 May	2018	iii	

List of Tables 
 
Table ES-1 – Groundwater Production for Calendar Year 2016 
Table ES-2 – LOBP Metric Summary 
Table ES-3 – Basin Infrastructure Projects 
Table 1 – Water Quality Monitoring Constituents 
Table 2 – CEC Monitoring Constituents 
Table 3 – Spring 2017 Water Levels - First Water 
Table 4 – Spring 2017 Water Levels - Upper Aquifer 
Table 5 – Spring 2017 Water Levels - Lower Aquifer  
Table 6 – Fall 2017 Water Levels - First Water 
Table 7 – Fall 2017 Water Levels - Upper Aquifer 
Table 8 – Fall 2017 Water Levels - Lower Aquifer  
Table 9 – Fall 2017 Water Quality Results - First Water and Upper Aquifer 
Table 10 – Spring 2017 Water Quality Results - Lower Aquifer 
Table 11 – Fall 2017 Water Quality Results - Lower Aquifer 
Table 12 – CEC Monitoring Results 
Table 13 – Municipal Groundwater Production (2013-2017) 
Table 14 – Basin Groundwater Production (2013-2017) 
Table 15 – Active and Former Precipitation Stations 
Table 16 – Maximum Stream Stage for Los Osos Creek, 2017 Water Year 
Table 17 – Spring and Fall 2017 Groundwater in Storage (<250 mg/L Chloride) 
Table 18 – Change in Storage Spring 2016 to Spring 2017 (<250 mg/l Chloride) 
Table 19 – 2017 Water Level Metric 
Table 20 – 2017 Chloride Metric 
Table 21 – 2017 Nitrate Metric 
Table 22 – LOBP Metric Summary 
Table 23 – Basin Groundwater Monitoring Program Status 
Table 24 – Summary from Adopted 2012 County Water Conservation Plan 
Table 25 – Summary of Conservation Rebates Provided through May, 2017 
Table 26 – BMC Water Conservation Measures 
Table 27 – Updated County Water Conservation Proposed Rebate Program 
Table 28 – Planned Recycled Water Uses in the Urban Water Reinvestment Program 
Table 29 – Basin Infrastructure Projects 
  



	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report‐DRAFT	 May	2018	iv	

List of Figures 
 
Figure 1 - Basin Location and Plan Areas 
Figure 2 - Groundwater Monitoring Program - First Water Wells 
Figure 3 - Groundwater Monitoring Program - Upper Aquifer Wells 
Figure 4 - Groundwater Monitoring Program - Lower Aquifer Wells 
Figure 5 - Basin Aquifers 
Figure 6 - Basin Production (1971-2017) - Basin Total and Western Area 
Figure 7 - Basin Production (1971-2017) - Central and Eastern Areas 
Figure 8 - Cumulative Departure from Mean Rainfall at Morro Bay Fire Department 
Figure 9 - Spring 2017 Water Level Contours - Perched Aquifer 
Figure 10 - Spring 2017 Water Level Contours - Upper Aquifer and Alluvial Aquifer 
Figure 11 - Spring 2017 Water Level Contours - Lower Aquifer 
Figure 12 - Fall 2017 Water Level Contours - Perched Aquifer 
Figure 13 - Fall 2017 Water Level Contours - Upper Aquifer and Alluvial Aquifer 
Figure 14 - Fall 2017 Water Level Contours - Lower Aquifer 
Figure 15 - Water Level Hydrographs - Perched Aquifer / First Water 
Figure 16 - Water Level Hydrographs - Upper Aquifer 
Figure 17 - Water Level Hydrographs - Lower Aquifer 
Figure 18 - Seawater Intrusion Front - Western Area Lower Aquifer Zone D 
Figure 19 - Basin Storage Compartments 
Figure 20 - Basin Yield Metric Comparison 
Figure 21 - Chloride and Water Level Metric 
Figure 22 - Nitrate Metric 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Groundwater Monitoring History 
Appendix B – Los Osos Basin Plan Groundwater Monitoring Program Well Information 
Appendix C – Field Logs and Laboratory Analytical Reports for 2017 BMC Monitoring 
Appendix D – Field Methods 
Appendix E – Land Use and Water Use Areas 
Appendix F – 2017 Agricultural Water Use Estimate 
Appendix G – Precipitation and Streamflow Data  
Appendix H – Transducer Hydrographs  
Appendix I – Groundwater Storage Calculation Example and Specific Yield Estimates 
Appendix J – Groundwater Storage Sensitivity Analysis  
Appendix K – Nitrate-Nitrogen Monitoring Data 2002-2017



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018	1	

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The 2017 Annual Report describes Basin activities related to the Los Osos Basin Plan (LOBP) 
Groundwater Monitoring Program, and provides results and interpretation of these activities in 
calendar year 2017.  The LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is necessary to accomplish the 
following continuing goals set forth in Section 2.4 of the LOBP (ISJ Group, 2015): 

1. Provide for a continuously updated hydrologic assessment of the Basin, its water resources 
and sustainable yield. 

2. Create a water resource accounting which is able to meet the information needs for 
planning, monitoring, trading, environmental management, utility operations, land 
development and agricultural operations. 

The LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is also necessary to support other goals of the LOBP, 
including prevention of seawater intrusion, establishing a long-term environmentally and 
economically sustainable and beneficial use of the Basin, and the equitable allocation of costs 
associated with Basin management. 

 
Groundwater Production 
Groundwater production for calendar year 2017 is summarized in Table ES-1 below.  Purveyor 
production has increased by five 5 percent compared to 2016, while total basin production has 
decreased by 4 percent compared to 2016 due to lower estimated production for community 
facilities and agriculture. 

 

Table ES-1.  Groundwater Production for Calendar Year 2016 

Description Production in Acre-Feet 

Los Osos Community Services District 570 

Golden State Water Company 450 

S&T Mutual Water Company 30 

Purveyor Subtotal 1,050 

Domestic wells 220 

Community facilities 130 

Agricultural wells 670 

Total Estimated Production 2,070 

 
 



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018	2	

Basin Status 
The status of the Basin in terms of key parameters and metrics are as follows: 

Precipitation.  The basin received above normal rainfall in 2017.  The drought condition 
for San Luis Obispo County improved from exceptional drought (the highest intensity) to 
abnormally dry (the lowest intensity) during 2017. 

Seawater intrusion front movement.  The seawater intrusion front retreated toward the 
coast between Fall 2016 and Fall 2017 (an improvement). 

Basin Yield Metric.  The Basin Yield Metric improved between 2016 and 2017, and has 
met the LOBP goal for two consecutive years. 

Water Level Metric.  The Water Level Metric improved between Spring 2016 and Spring 
2017, but has not reached the target value.  

Chloride Level Metric.  The Chloride Metric improved between Fall 2016 and Fall 2017, 
but has not reached the target value. 

Nitrate Metric.  The Nitrate Metric did not improve between Winter 2016 and Winter 
2017, and has not reached the target value. 

 
Recommendations for improving the quality and availability of data are contained in Chapter 9 of 
the Annual Report.  The recommendations include developing a rating curve for the stream gage 
on Los Osos Creek, developing specific yield values for individual aquifers to improve 
groundwater storage estimates, re-evaluating the Water Level Metric target, and further evaluation 
of wellbore flow and Upper Aquifer influence at Chloride Metric well LA10. 
 
 
LOBP Metrics 
As described in Section 7 (“Data Interpretation”) of this Annual Report, the LOBP established 
several metrics to measure nitrate impacts to the Upper Aquifer, seawater intrusion into the Lower 
Aquifer, and the effect of management efforts of the Basin Management Committee (BMC). These 
metrics allow the Parties, the BMC, regulatory agencies, and the public to evaluate the status of 
nitrate levels and seawater intrusion, and the impact of implementation of the LOBP programs in 
the Basin through objective, numerical criteria that can be tracked over time. The status of key 
Basin metrics is summarized in Table ES-2.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018	3	

 
Table ES-2.  LOBP Metric Summary 

Metric LOBP Goal 
Calculated Value 
from 2017 Data 

Recommended Actions 
in Addition to LOBP 

Programs 

Basin Yield Metric 80 or less 75 

Implement additional 
conservation measures 
to reduce indoor and 

outdoor demands (See 
Section 10.3.2) 

Water Level Metric 
8 feet above mean 
sea level or higher

1.5 feet above mean 
sea level 

Implement additional 
conservation measures 
to reduce indoor and 

outdoor demands (See 
Section 10.3.2) 

Chloride Level 
Metric 

100 mg/L or 
lower 

132 mg/L 

Implement additional 
conservation measures 
to reduce indoor and 

outdoor demands (See 
Section 10.3.2) 

Nitrate Metric 10 mg/L or lower 32 mg/L (NO3-N) None recommended 

 
Adaptive Management Program 
In addition to the programs described in the LOBP, the following additional measures are 
recommended in the context of adaptive management.  Details regarding each program are 
provided in Section 10 of this Annual Report: 

Potential Adaptation of Urban Water Use Efficiency Program. The BMC plans to take 
a close look at the Urban Water Use Efficiency Program to determine which conservation 
measures are the most efficient and effective to meet the LOBP’s goals. This analysis may 
result in adaptation of some of the conservation measure set forth in the LOBP, including 
the addition of outdoor measures as described in Section 10. 

Development of Contingency Plan. The BMC plans to develop a contingency plan and 
related actions in the event Basin Metric trends fail to demonstrate progress toward LOBP 
goals, including defined schedules and milestones.  

Discussion and Development of Metrics for Future Growth. The BMC plans to provide 
input into the Los Osos Community Plan, including consideration of Basin Metrics and 
defined goals as they relate to the timing of future growth.  

Additional Water Quality Metrics. The BMC intends to consider developing additional 
metrics and/or numerical goals to protect the upper aquifer from water quality threats, such 
as seawater intrusion and chromium-6 contamination.



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018		 4	

LOBP Infrastructure Programs 
The status of LOBP infrastructure programs is summarized Table ES- 3. 
 

Table ES-3. Basin Infrastructure Projects  

Project Name Parties Involved Funding 
Status 

Capital Cost Status 

Program A 
Water Systems Interconnection LOCSD/ 

GSWC 
Fully Funded Construction Value: 

$103,550 
Project completed February 2017, with final approval in March 
2017 

Upper Aquifer Well (8th Street) LOCSD Fully Funded $250,000 Well was drilled and cased in December 2016.  Budget 
remaining $250,000 to equip the well.  Design RFP was issued 
in April, and a consultant should be retained by June 2017.  
Project to be completed by June 2018 or earlier if possible.  

South Bay Well Nitrate Removal LOCSD Completed 

Palisades Well Modifications LOCSD Completed 

Blending Project (Skyline Well) GSWC Fully Funded Previously funded 
through rate case 

Blending of Skyline Well and Rosina Well Project was 
completed.  Project required modifications to include a new 
nitrate removal unit.  Permits and equipment secured. Delivery 
of the treatment unit is estimated for the beginning of July. 
Assuming 4 weeks for installation, start-up is anticipated in 
September 2017. 

Water Meters S&T Completed 

Program B 
LOCSD Wells LOCSD Not Funded BMP:  

$2.7 mil 
Project not initiated 

GSWC Wells GSWC Not Funded BMP:  
$3.2 mil 

Project not initiated 

Community Nitrate Removal 
Facility 

LOCSD/GSWC Partial First phase 
combined with 

GSWC Program A 

GSWC’s Program A Blending Project allows for incremental 
expansion of the nitrate facility and can be considered a first 
phase in Program B. 

 



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018		 5	

Project Name Parties Involved Funding 
Status 

Capital Cost Status 

Program C 
Expansion Well No. 1 (Los Olivos) GSWC Fully 

Funded 
Previously 

funded through 
rate case 

Well has been drilled and cased.  GSWC is in the 
equipping phase.  Well can be used, if needed, using 
on-site generator.  Formal startup of the well with 
permanent equipment is anticipated in July 2017. 

Expansion Well No. 2 GSWC Pending 
Funding 

Vote 

BMP:  
$2.0 mil 

Property acquisition phase is on-going through efforts of 
LOCSD.  Two sites are currently being reviewed, and 
both appear to be viable for new east side lower aquifer 
wells, Environmental studies initiated in December 2016 
for expansion well #2. 

Expansion Well 3 and LOVR Water 
Main Upgrade 

GSWC Pending 
Funding 

Vote 

BMP:  
$1.6 mil 

Property acquisition phase is on-going through efforts of 
LOCSD.  Two sites are currently being reviewed, and 
both appear to be viable for new east side lower aquifer 
wells.   

LOVR Water Main Upgrade GSWC Pending 
Funding 

Vote 

BMP:  
$1.53 mil 

Project not initiated 

S&T/GSWC Interconnection S&T/ 
GSWC 

Pending  BMP: $30,000 Conceptual design 

Program M 
New Zone D/E lower aquifer 
monitoring well in Cuesta by the Sea  

All Parties Not funded $100,000  Pending funding plan 



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018	6	

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Los Osos groundwater basin was adjudicated in October 2015 (Los Osos Community Services 
District v. Southern California Water Company [Golden State Water Company] et al. (San Luis 
Obispo County Superior Court Case No. CV 040126) and is managed by the Los Osos 
Groundwater Basin Management Committee (BMC), consisting of representatives from Los Osos 
Community Services District (LOCSD), Golden State Water Company (GSWC), S&T Mutual 
Water Company (S&T), and the County of San Luis Obispo (County).  This is the third Annual 
Report for the basin. 
 
The 2017 Annual Report describes basin activities related to the Los Osos Basin Plan (LOBP) 
Groundwater Monitoring Program, and provides results and interpretation of these activities.  The 
LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is necessary to accomplish the following continuing 
goals set forth in Section 2.4 of the LOBP (ISJ Group, 2015): 
 
 1. Provide for a continuously updated hydrologic assessment of the Basin, its water  
  resources and sustainable yield. 
 
 2. Create a water resource accounting which is able to meet the information needs for 
  planning, monitoring, trading, environmental management, utility operations, land 
  development and agricultural operations. 
 
The LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is also necessary to support other LOBP goals, 
including prevention of seawater intrusion, establishing a long-term environmentally and 
economically sustainable and beneficial use of the basin, and the equitable allocation of costs 
associated with basin management (ISJ Group, 2015).  The program will provide significant 
overlap with several regulatory requirements, including: 

 Senate Bill 1168, Senate Bill 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739 which collectively establish the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 

 California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) Program 

 State Water Resource Control Board’s (SWRCB) salt and nutrient monitoring guidelines as 
adopted in the state Recycled Water Policy 

 Recycled Water Management Plan requirements for the Los Osos Water Recycling Facility 
(LOWRF) 

This report was prepared by Cleath-Harris Geologists (CHG).  Wallace Group contributed to the 
Executive Summary and produced Chapter 10 (Adaptive Management).  BMC member agency 
staff provided assistance during field monitoring activities and with Annual Report review. 



 
 

	
2017	Annual	Monitoring	Report	‐	DRAFT	 May	2018	7	

2. BACKGROUND 
 
In August 2008, the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Luis Obispo 
(Court) approved an Interlocutory Stipulated Judgment (ISJ) between LOCSD, GSWC, S&T, and 
the County.  Under the ISJ, these Parties formed a working group, undertaking technical studies 
and management discussions that produced the LOBP in January 2015.  The LOBP presents a 
comprehensive groundwater management strategy and serves as the cornerstone of a physical 
solution to address the significant problems facing the basin, including seawater intrusion and 
elevated nitrate concentrations, and for restoration of basin water resources, while respecting 
existing water rights.  The LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is a key component of the 
LOBP, providing water level and water quality data that serve as measures of effectiveness for 
LOBP programs and activities with respect to the restoration of basin water resources.  A final 
Stipulated Judgment was approved by the Court on October 14, 2015. 
 
The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) took effect on January 1, 2015, and 
requires that certain actions be taken in groundwater basins designated as either high or medium 
priority by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), including the Los Osos Basin.  
DWR identified the Los Osos Basin as a high priority basin subject to critical conditions of 
overdraft due to seawater intrusion and nitrate impairment (DWR, 2014, 2016).  SGMA does not 
apply to the LOBP plan areas covered by the Stipulated Judgment, which are shown in Figure 1.  
In order to comply with SGMA, the County formed the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) 
to cover groundwater basin areas between the Bulletin 118 Basin boundaries (Basin 3-8) and the 
LOBP area boundary, which are designated as "fringe areas".  Hydrogeologic characterization of 
the fringe areas in support of a Basin Boundary Modification Request was initiated in 2017. 
 

2.1 Groundwater Monitoring History 
 
Groundwater monitoring has been performed by public agencies, water purveyors, and consultants 
for various basin studies and programs over several decades.  A list of historical investigations, 
monitoring reports, and monitoring programs with a major focus on basin water levels and water 
quality through 2017 is included in Appendix A. 
 

2.2 Groundwater Monitoring Program Design 
 
The purpose of the LOBP Groundwater Monitoring Program is to collect and organize groundwater 
data on a regular basis for use in management of the basin.  Design of the LOBP Groundwater 
Monitoring Program is detailed in Chapter 7 of the LOBP.  The basic elements of the program are 
as follows: 
 
 Monitor long-term groundwater level trends in a network of wells for three monitoring 

groups within the basin: First Water (FW), Upper Aquifer (UA), and Lower Aquifer (LA). 


	5a - BMC Minutes from 3-21-18_0
	5b Budget Update Complete 5-16-18_0
	6 Executive directors report_0
	6-1- Signed BMC Letter of Support
	6 - FW-6 through april
	7a 2017 Annual Report draft_0

